Public Document Pack

CABINET AGENDA
Tuesday, 20 April 2021 at 10.00 am. The meeting to be held virtually.
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business
1

Apologies for absence

2

Minutes (Pages 3 - 10)
Cabinet is asked to approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting held on
23 March 2021

Recommendation to Council
3

Performance Management and Improvement Framework (Pages 11 - 32)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

Non Key Decisions
4

Response to Government’s consultation on the future of the New Homes
Bonus. (Pages 33 - 46)
Report of the Chief Executive

5

Gateshead Council Equality Objectives 2021-22 (Pages 47 - 54)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

6

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates - Transfer of Uncollectable Amounts
(Pages 55 - 58)
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

7

Local Bus Board for Gateshead (Pages 59 - 66)
Report of the Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation and Growth

8

School Term Dates 2022-2023 (Pages 67 - 72)
Report of the Strategic Director, Children, Adults and Families

9

Nomination of Local Authority School Governors (Pages 73 - 76)
Report of the Strategic Director, Children, Adults and Families

10

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The Cabinet may wish to exclude the press and public from the meeting during
consideration of the following item(s) on the grounds indicated:
Item

Paragraph of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972

11
12

3
3

Key Decisions
11

Blue Bin Recycling Material Contract (Pages 77 - 82)
Report of the Strategic Director, Housing, Environment and Healthy Communities

12

Young People's Drug and Alcohol Service Contract (Pages 83 - 88)
Report of the Director of Public Health

Contact: Kevin Ingledew Email: keviningledew@gateshead.gov.uk, Tel: 0191 4332142,
Date: Monday, 12 April 2021

Agenda Item 2
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET MEETING
Tuesday, 23 March 2021

PRESENT:

Councillor M Gannon
Councillors: C Donovan, J Adams, M Brain, A Douglas,
L Green, G Haley, J McElroy, M McNestry and B Oliphant
Also in attendance: Councillors R Beadle and JC Wallace

C108

MINUTES
The minutes of the last meeting held on 23 February 2021 were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

C109

TREASURY POLICY STATEMENT AND TREASURY STRATEGY 2021/22 TO
2025/26
Consideration has been given to recommending the Council to approve the Treasury
Policy Statement and Treasury Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26.
RESOLVED -

That the Council be recommended to approve the Treasury
Policy Statement and the Treasury Strategy as set out in
appendices 2 and 3 to the report.

The above decision has been made to ensure that the Council fully complies with the
requirements of good financial practice in Treasury Management.

C110

LOCALISM ACT 2011 - PAY ACCOUNTABILITY PAY POLICY STATEMENT
2021-22
Consideration has been given to recommending the Council to approve a revised Pay
Policy Statement for 2020/21.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the Council be recommended to approve the Pay Policy
Statement for 2021/22 as set out in appendix 2 to the report.

(ii)

That it be noted as none of the relevant pay awards have been
agreed at the time of publication of the report, the Strategic
Director, Corporate Services and Governance, under his
delegated powers within Schedule 2, Part 1, Section 2 (14) of
the Council’s constitution will apply any national agreements
and further update the policy as required, following consultation
with the Leader of the Council and the Strategic Director,
Resources and Digital and if more significant changes to the
Pay Policy are proposed as a result of the various pay awards

Page 3

or otherwise, a further report will be brought to Cabinet for
consideration.
The above decisions have been made to comply with the requirements of the Localism
Act 2011.

C111

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2021/22
Consideration has been given to the proposed calendar of meetings for 2021/22.
RESOLVED -

That the Council be recommended to:
(i)

Approve the calendar of meetings 2021/22.

(ii)

Agree that, as far as possible, meetings should not be held
during school holidays.

(iii)

Authorise the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance, following consultation with the appropriate Chairs,
to make any necessary amendments to the calendar of
meetings.

The above decisions have been made to assist in the preparation of the Cabinet’s
schedule of decisions and to allow councillors and officers to plan commitments in their
diaries.

C112

RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION - NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY
FRAMEWORK AND NATIONAL MODEL DESIGN CODE
Consideration has been given to a response to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government (MHCLG) consultation on the National Planning Policy Framework
and National Model Design Code.
That the response to the MHCLG’s consultation on the National
Planning Policy Framework and National Model Design Code as
set out in appendix 2 to the report be approved.

RESOLVED -

The above decision has been made to enable the Council to contribute a response to the
consultation.

C113

RENT ARREARS FOR FORMER TENANTS & SUNDRY ACCOUNT DEBTS –
TRANSFER OF UNCOLLECTABLE AMOUNTS
Consideration has been given to transfer out of the Council’s accounts individual debts in
excess of £500 relating to former tenant rent arrears and sundry account debts orders
where all possible recovery action has been taken and the balances are now considered
uncollectable.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the transfer of balances on 204 former tenant accounts,
amounting to £232,350 be approved.

Page 4

(ii)

That the action taken under delegated powers to transfer out of
Council’s accounts the amounts deemed uncollectable be
noted.

The above decisions have been made to ensure effective management of the Council’s
resources as any further pursuit of these arrears is unlikely to result in significant sums
being recovered and would be more effectively used to recover new debt.

C114

MISCELLANEOUS INCOME - TRANSFER OF UNCOLLECTABLE AMOUNTS
Consideration has been given to the transfer out of the Council’s Accounts outstanding
balances in excess of £500 from miscellaneous income accounts and Housing Benefits
overpayments where all possible recovery action has been taken and the balances are
now considered to be uncollectable.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the transfer of balances on 210 sundry debtor accounts,
amounting to £240,403.69 and 84 Housing Benefits
overpayment invoices totalling £203,309.39 be approved.

(ii)

That the action taken under delegated powers to transfer out of
the Council’s accounts the identified amounts that are deemed
uncollectable be noted.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:

C115

(A)

To ensure the effective management of the Council’s
resources.

(B)

To ensure that the Council Accounts accurately reflect the
correct financial position.

GATESHEAD HEALTH & CARE SYSTEM ALLIANCE AGREEMENT
Consideration has been given to an Alliance Agreement for the Gateshead Health & Care
st
System with effect from the 1 April 2021.
RESOLVED -

That the Alliance Agreement for the Gateshead Health & Care
st
System with effect from the 1 April 2021 as set out in the
report be approved.

The above decision has been made for the following reasons:
(A)

To build upon the existing Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) in place since 2019.

(B)

To make the most of the good relationships that have been
developed at Place over a long period.

(C)

To provide a framework that the Gateshead system can use in
preparation for future changes to the health and care

Page 5

landscape.

C116

PETITIONS SCHEDULE
Consideration has been given to an update on petitions submitted to the Council and the
action taken on them.
RESOLVED -

That the petitions received and the action taken on them as set
out in appendix 2 to the report be noted.

The above decision has been made to inform the Cabinet of the progress of the petitions.

C117

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED -

C118

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the remaining business in accordance with
paragraphs 1 and 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government
Act 1972.

PUBLIC SECTOR DECARBONISATION SCHEME - GRANT 2
Consideration has been given to:
a) the action under delegated powers to accept grants totalling the amount set out in
the report from the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme;
b) the proposal to seek approval to accept further grants for schemes currently on
the Salix (The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
funding agent) contingency list;
c) the proposal to procure suppliers to design and install the various energy saving
measures required; and
d) the results of the works carried out using the Low Carbon Skills Fund £0.1m grant.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the action taken by the Strategic Director, Economy,
Innovation and Growth in accordance with Part 3, Schedule 5 of
the Council’s constitution – General Delegations to Managers,
Part 2, Paragraph 4(e), in accepting the grant offer of the
amount set out in the report, from the Public Sector
Decarbonisation Scheme for the schemes listed in the report be
noted.

(ii)

That the Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation
and Growth, following consultation with the Strategic Director,
Corporate Services and Governance (or his delegate), be
authorised to approve the compliant procurement route for the
heat and power connections as set out in the report.

(iii)

That the Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation
and Growth, following consultation with the Strategic Director,
Corporate Services and Governance (or his delegate), be
authorised to accept a further offer of grant funding for energy
efficiency work at Blaydon Business Centre, from the Salix

Page 6

contingency list, should that be forthcoming.
(iv)

That further reports be submitted to Cabinet on other bids to the
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme should they be
forthcoming from the Salix contingency list.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:

C119

(A)

To support the Council’s Thrive agenda.

(B)

To support the Council’s Climate Emergency and targets of net
zero emissions by 2030.

SUPPLIER RELIEF CLAIM FOR GATESHEAD ENERGY COMPANY
Consideration has been given to the proposal to grant supplier relief in accordance with
the Government’s Procurement Policy Note (PPN 02/20 Supplier Relief due to COVID19) and PPN 04/20 (Recovery and Transition from COVID-19) to Gateshead Energy
Company (GEC) under its Concession Contract for the operation of Gateshead District
Energy Scheme.
The alternative options to that being recommended, but which were discounted, included
not to award supplier relief, deferring a proportion of the concession charge, providing a
lower amount of supplier relief or providing a loan.
RESOLVED -

That the provision of supplier relief of the amount set out in the
report to Gateshead Energy Company, for the period of 1 April
– 31 October 2020 be approved.

The above decision has been made for the following reasons:

C120

(A)

To support the Gateshead Energy Company to be able to
continue to run and operate the Gateshead District Energy
Scheme for the benefit of the Borough and reduce the financial
risk arising from the COVID-19 outbreak to Gateshead Energy
Company.

(B)

To act in accordance with the Government’s Procurement
Policy Note (PPN 02/20 Supplier Relief due to COVID-19) and
PPN 04/20 (Recovery and Transition from COVID-19).

REVIEW OF PRINT POINT
Consideration has been given to the outcome of consultation with employees and Trade
Unions on proposals made following a review of Print Point and to the revised proposal to
suspend this service for a period of 12 months.
The alternative options to that being recommended, but which were discounted, included
continuing to subsidise the service and restructure or outsourcing the service as a going
concern.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the proposal to suspend the Print Point Service for a

Page 7

period of 12 months as set out in the report be approved.
(ii)

That the temporary redeployment of the four Pint Point
employees as set out in the report be approved.

(iii)

That a further report be submitted to Cabinet on the outcome of
an assessment of the Council’s future demand for print, to be
carried out throughout 2021/22 as set out in the report, with a
recommendation as to how those needs can best be met,
consistent with the Council’s policy priorities.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:

C121

(A)

Implementation of the approved Council Budget 2020/21.

(B)

To ensure the Council is able to provide efficient and effective
print services in line with its priorities for Gateshead including
the Digital Strategy and Climate Change ambition.

(C)

To enable the Council to focus resources on the delivery of
services that make Gateshead a place where everyone can
Thrive.

REVIEW OF THE SCHOOL MUSIC SERVICE
Consideration has been given to proposals to restructure the Schools Music Service
provision and staffing structure in response to changing needs from schools, to ensure
the Music Service is sustainable and future-proofed for changes in funding, whilst
delivering the priorities of the National Plan for Music Education to provide high quality
music education to all children.
The alternative options to that being recommended, but which were discounted, included
retaining the existing structure or increasing the number of staff on permanent contracts.
RESOLVED -

(i)

That the proposal to restructure the Schools Music Service as
set out in the report be approved.

(ii)

That the commencement of a redundancy consultation
exercise with the existing workforce and engagement with
school governing bodies to agree alternative arrangements for
individual and small group tuition be approved.

The above decisions have been made for the following reasons:
(A)

To ensure the Council can provide an effective and efficient
high-quality music service that offers value for money.

(B)

To ensure that music service offer is designed to be inclusive
and offers fair access to all communities in the borough so
making Gateshead a place where everyone can Thrive.

Page 8

Copies of all reports and appendices referred to in these minutes are available online
and in the minute file. Please note access restrictions apply for exempt business as
defined by the Access to Information Act.
The decisions referred to in these minutes will come into force and be implemented after
the expiry of 3 working days after the publication date of the minutes identified below
unless the matters are ‘called in’.
Publication date: 25 March 2021
Chair……….………………..

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
REPORT TO CABINET
20 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Performance Management and Improvement Framework

REPORT OF:

Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

Purpose of the report
1. This report sets out the proposed new Performance Management and Improvement
Framework (PMIF) for the Council. Cabinet is asked to approve the proposed
framework and recommend it to Council for approval.
Background
2. Performance Management is used by local authorities to identify how well they are
delivering outcomes for local people. It aims to help services get from where they
are to where they need to be and inform decision in an efficient and effective way.
The Council’s current performance framework has been in place for several years
and has evolved over time.
3. A new framework is needed that better reflects the priorities of the Council – the
delivery of the Council’s Thrive policy and Health and Wellbeing Strategy and which
also considers the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in Gateshead.
Proposal
4. A review of the Council’s framework for performance has been undertaken. The
development was based on agreed principles, set out in Appendix 1, which were
used to shape the new approach.
5. The proposed revised PMIF (Appendix 2) has a clear focus on priorities, delivery
and measurement and analysis of impact. It is based on Thrive, tackling inequalities
and is framed within the six policy objectives of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
It comprises a Corporate Framework that sets out performance against Health and
Wellbeing Strategy outcomes and a Balanced Scorecard that sets out performance
against ‘organisational health’.
6. The purpose the new proposed PMIF is to:





Enable the Council to know whether the it is achieving its priorities. (Thrive
Policy and Health and Wellbeing Strategy).
Ensure that the Council's resources are being deployed effectively.
Make both short and long-term effective decisions.
A whole systems approach – embedded in our partnership working to deliver
the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

Page 11
1

7. The development has included extensive engagement, drawing on the views of
councillors, employees, trade unions and partners to understand and inform an
approach to enable the Council to effectively manage corporate performance and
improvement. A summary of the themes emerging from the engagement is at
Appendix 1 and it has been important in shaping the PMIF.
8. This engagement will continue through further refinement of the PMIF to test the
approach, embed this with greater ownership and facilitate a more collaborative
approach.
9. Implementation will begin after Council approval with development throughout the
year to confirm measures and develop a baseline in recognition that a flexible
approach is needed to take account of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and the
developing strategies to help to address inequalities in Gateshead.
10. The new approach requires, through the implementation plan, culture change,
include greater ownership of corporate performance across the organisation and
empowerment of employees to drive improvement and deliver better outcomes. This
came out strongly in the engagement and will form part of the planning going
forward.
11. A roadmap for implementation with an iterative approach has been developed with
continuous development taking into account developing strategies and plans to
inform the further development of Outcomes, Interventions, Resource and
Performance Measures. There will be further employee and partner engagement
and the Baseline and target setting will also progress along with an approach to a
community conversation.
12. Importantly, performance will be a continued conversation and tool for councillors
and officers throughout the year to understand and manage performance and
improvement. It is proposed that a report is brought back to Cabinet in October to
set out outcomes, interventions and performance measures. It is further proposed
that Overview and Scrutiny Committees receive quarterly reporting on the PMIF and
that reporting to Cabinet is on a 6 monthly basis to ensure effective reporting and
management of corporate performance across the Council.
Recommendation
13. Cabinet is asked to:
(i)

Recommend the Council to approve the Performance Management and
Improvement Framework at Appendix 2.

(ii)

Agree to receive 6 monthly performance reports identifying the impact of
Council actions and intervention and delivery of Thrive and the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.
For the following reasons:


To ensure there is an effective framework in place to enable the Council to
manage performance across its priorities and understand the impact of
decisions.

Page 12
2



To enable the Council to focus resources on the delivery of services that make
Gateshead a place where everyone can Thrive

CONTACT:

Lindsay Murray - Extension 2794

Page 13
3

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1. The proposal supports the Council’s priorities for Thrive by setting out a
framework to manage performance against its key priorities for thrive, tackle
inequalities and the impact being made on delivery of the Health and Wellbeing
Strategy. The PMIF will support and inform corporate policy decisions in the
future as well as resource allocation to ensure these are focused on the
Council’s priorities as part of a broader evidence based approach.
2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy sets out the financial context for
the Council’s resource allocation process and budget setting. The proposals
support the aims within the Strategy by aligning performance with the overall
approach to the budget to support the financial sustainability for the Council
ensuring that resources are deployed on the outcomes for making Gateshead a
place where everyone Thrives.
Background
3. Performance Management is used by local authorities to identify how well they
are delivering outcomes for local people. The Council’s current performance
framework has been in place for several years and has evolved over time.
4. A new framework is needed that better reflects the priorities of the Council – the
delivery of the Council’s Thrive policy and Health and Wellbeing Strategy and
which also considers the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic in Gateshead.
Review and Principles
5. A review of the Council’s framework for performance has been undertaken. The
development was based on agreed principles which were used to shape the new
approach to ensure it:











Is shaped around the characteristics needed to enable people to thrive
Is simple, responsive, timely and meaningful indicators
Empowers employees to drive improvement
Incorporates qualitative and quantitative approaches
Recognises locality-based approaches, population and community level
interventions to improve
Considers partnerships, communities and aligned to key policies and
strategies such as the Health and Well-being Strategy, housing and
schools
Is intelligence led, using evidence to learn and improve
Considers how to incorporate a wider range of data, for example linking to
a ‘Data hub’ approach
Measures the health of the organisation (balanced scorecard approach)
Enables members to scrutinise performance and see the impact of decision
making

6. The review also used desktop research to identify best practice from other local
authorities as well as organisations such as the Local Government Association,
and APSE etc.

Page 14
4

7. Engagement has also played a significant role in the review and development of
the framework being proposed. The development has included extensive
engagement, drawing on the views of councillors, employees, the Trade Unions
and partners to understand and inform an approach to enable the Council to
effectively manage corporate performance and see the impact of policy and
resource decisions.
8. Key themes from the engagement included:


Very positive about the approach focusing on priorities, tackling inequalities
through Thrive and HWB Strategy
Resources link being important – inform budget decisions, employees and
assets
Corporate Analysis – assessing, review, interpreting performance
Move from measurement to management – a tool for improvement
Data – corporate ownership management – a usable asset to inform
decision making
Clearer presentation - exception reporting, focus on improvements needed
- 3D approach for different audiences
Mechanism to improve ways of working – break down silos, greater
collaboration
Locality approaches – understanding issues in different geographies









9. This engagement will continue through further refinement of the PMIF to test the
approach, embed this with greater ownership and facilitate more collaborative
and integrated working.
A New Performance Management and Improvement Framework
10. The proposed revised PMIF is set out at Appendix 2. This is based on Thrive
and is framed within the six policy objectives of the Health and Wellbeing
Strategy. The key features are:
 Outcomes (Health and Wellbeing Strategy)
 Interventions/Actions
 Resources
 Strategic Risk
 Performance measures (strategic & operational)
 Impact analysis (‘story telling’, qualitative and geographic/locality)
 Balanced Scorecard to check the organisational health of the Council
11. A roadmap for implementation has been developed with key milestones being:


Gradual Implementation from Council approval - iterative with continuous
development taking into account developing strategies and plans:
o Strategy development (e.g. Economic Strategy; Climate Change
Action Plan; Community Wealth Building)
o Connect and co-ordinate with LA7 Economic Recovery Plan
o To inform further development of Outcomes, Interventions,
Resources & Performance Measures
o Employee engagement
o Partner Engagement – through HWB Board

Page 15
5






o Baseline and targets to be developed - July 21 Establish baseline
data for the current state (Public Health & Wellbeing)
o Development of Community Conversations approach
Data Management & IT Solutions including presentation for different
audiences – Sept 21
Developing a ‘Community Conversation’ approach
‘Test drive’ the framework to inform quarterly reviews July, Oct; Jan, April
(2022)
Quarterly report to OSCs and 6 month report to Cabinet

Alternative Options
12. An alternative option would be to continue with the existing Performance
Management Framework. This option is not recommended as the Council
required a framework that is focused on delivery of priorities, measuring impact,
makes better links to use of resources and has a greater analytical element that
focuses on what matters. The recommended option will better enable the
Council to manage corporate performance and use this to inform decision
making.
Consultation
13. All members have been consulted through the following mechanisms:
 Two Corporate Advisory Group meetings
 All Overview and Scrutiny Committees
 Meeting with Chairs and Vice Chairs of Overview and Scrutiny
Committees
 Portfolio meetings
 The Leader and Deputy Leader have also been consulted
14. Three focus groups for employees have also taken place as well as officer
workshops. Further employee engagement is planned as part of the
implementation of the new PMIF. One informal engagement session was held
with Trade Unions.
15. Partner engagement has included the Health and Wellbeing Board and the
Gateshead Health and Care Systems Board. Engagement with these is
developing further throughout implementation. Additional engagement is also
taking place others such as with the VCS to establish a more joined up and
integrated approach to performance management across shared priorities.
Implications of Recommended Option
16. Resources
a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms that the proposal will have no direct financial implications as a
result of this report. The proposal aims to align performance with resources
and enable better informed decision making.

Page 16
6

b) Human Resource Implications – There are no Human Resource
implications arising directly from this report. The further development and
implementation of the framework however will seek to engage employees.
c) Property Implications – There are no property implications arising directly
from this report.
17. Risk Management Implication - The proposals will reduce the risk of the
Council not achieving its priorities by enabling effective performance
management across strategy corporate priorities.
18. Equality and Diversity Implications –There are no direct equalities and
diversity implications arising from this report, however the framework has a focus
on addressing inequalities.
19. Crime and Disorder Implications –There are no crime and disorder
implications arising directly from this report.
20. Health Implications – While there are no direct health implications arising from
this report, the PMIF is based on the 6 policy objectives within the Health and
Well-being Strategy so will help to manage performance at a strategic level
across a range of wider determinants of health.
21. Climate Emergency – There are no climate emergency implications arising
directly from this report, though the PMIF will seek to manage performance
across a range of strategic priorities including the climate emergency.
22. Sustainability Implications – There are no sustainability implications arising
directly from this report
23. Human Rights Implications – There are no human rights implications arising
directly from this report
24. Ward Implications –There are no implications for a specific ward, though the
framework will include a geographical focus on performance where appropriate.
CONTACT:

Lindsay Murray - Extension 2794

Page 17
7

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

GIVE EVERY CHILD THE BEST START TO LIFE
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES
•
•

•
•

The circumstances which result in adverse childhood experiences are prevented
Parents can access support proportionate to meet their needs, to be the best parents they can

HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE THIS? INTERVENTIONS AND RESOURCES
On track DoT £ Strategic Performance
Outcome
Intervention
The
circumstances
which result in
adverse
childhood
experiences are
prevented

Page 19

Parents can
access support
proportionate to
meet their
needs, to be the
best parents
they can

All children
start school
ready to learn

All permanent
school
exclusions are
prevented

Develop a framework to support
Gateshead as a child friendly place
(HWB)
Economic Strategy
Support our schools to deliver an effective
curriculum that addresses the skills
required for later life and supports
emotional well-being (HWB) Link to LA7
Recovery Plan interventions including
summer catch-up programmes
Focus our efforts on supporting
confident, positive and resilient
parenting, to those who most need our
support (HWB)
C&F Early Help Strategy - providing
support to families when a need is
identified or as soon as a problem
emerges, at any point in a child’s life.
Looked After Children Strategy
Interventions - Where children need to be
cared for by the Council, we will make the
duration of care as short as possible.
Support families in making the changes
required to enable their children’s safe
return home.
Development of baseline linked to LA7
Recovery Plan
Increase the focus of existing
expenditure on early years to reduce
inequalities in early development (HWB)
Make sure maternity services, parenting
programmes, childcare and early year’s
education are of high quality and meet
needs of all groups (HWB)
Build resilience and well-being of all
children and young people (HWB)

Investment Strategy & Resources

Revenue 21/22
Gross
Net
£000
£000
134,067
36,871

Capital
£000
-

Commissioned Spend: tbc
Assets: Asset Strategy Review
Employees – 464.47 FTE (1730.46 FTE in schools)

% of children eligible for free school meals
Good development by age 5 (%) (Marmot)
Inequality in life expectancy at birth for Males
/ Females (PHOU AO2a) (Marmot)
No of children living in poverty (PHOF BO5)
% of all schools and academies in Gateshead
graded good or outstanding in relevant
categories

All children start school ready to learn
All permanent school exclusions are prevented

OUR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
Target DoT Operational Performance

Baseline Latest

Baseline Latest

Target

DoT

To be agreed by July 2021
To be agreed by July % of take up of free school meals
2021
The number of families with children
living in an HMO (aim to reduce to zero)

Economic indicators to be determined
% of Gateshead schools graded good
or outstanding in relevant categories

Baseline on lost learning development
No of children subject to a child protection
plan

Measures to support parents to access
services

Reduction in referrals to specialist services
such as Children Social Care

Reduction in the No of cases needed
stepped up to Statutory Services, /
Reduction in the number of families who
need repeated support from EH Teams
Reduction in the average duration of
care episodes / Increase in % of care
episodes where children return home
Increase use of specific interventions to
aid reunification (e.g. Family Group
Conferencing, FDAC)

Reduction in the number of children becoming
looked after

Baseline for early help – families needing
support
Baseline for Early Help
Good development by age 5 with free
school meal status (%) (Marmot)
School readiness % of children with free
school meals achieving a good standard of
development at the end of reception (PHOF
BO2a)
No of permanent exclusions and DoT
Baseline – lost learning

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation
• Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber
• Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in prosecution & subsequent penalties Amber
• The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that compromises confidentiality, integrity & availability of
information Amber
• Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & systems Amber
• Failure to address workforce planning & resource requirements impacting on service delivery Green

To be determined once baseline is
understood
6-8 week breastfeeding rate (PHOF
2.02ii)
Smoking at time of delivery (PHOF
CO6)

Support around school attendance

Qualitative Impact
Evidence of impact (customers, customer
profile, residents, employees others)
Assessments, reviews, project findings,
progress checks
-

Consider baseline for Early help (including rising
number of families needing support; children’s
emotional health and wellbeing; lost learning)

Geographic
Impact
(Localities
impact, LIoN data
etc)

ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?
ACTIONS

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
AREAS OF EXCELLENCE
Strategic

Strategic
Strategic

Operational

Operational
Operational

Resources

Resources
Resources

Page 20

ENABLE ALL YOUNG PEOPLE AND ADULTS TO MAXIMISE THEIR CAPABILITIES AND HAVE CONTROL OVER THEIR LIVES
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES
•
•
•

All young people are resilient, with good physical and mental health and wellbeing
All young people are ready and appropriately skilled for the workplace
Gateshead is a positive place in which everyone’s mental health and wellbeing can flourish
HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE THIS? - INTERVENTIONS & RESOURCES
On track DoT
Outcome
Intervention
Focus efforts on creating the conditions
All young people
for people to enjoy positive emotional
are resilient, with
good physical and health & well-being. Consider measures
across whole population alongside
mental health and
specific action in various settings
wellbeing
Support our schools to deliver an
All young people
effective curriculum that addresses the
are ready and
skills required for later life and supports
appropriately
emotional well-being (HWB)
skilled for the
workplace
LA7 Recovery Plan implementation
including the mitigation of increases in
educational inequalities, including catch
up programmes and NEET support

Commission research into wellbeing of
children and young people April 2021
Implementation of LA7 Recovery Plan
including addressing issues such as
Anti-social behaviour

Everyone is able
to be an active
part of their
community

Ensure that views & opinions of local
people are represented in all aspects of
our work through democratic process &
asset-based community development
Social Care interventions

Page 21

Gateshead is a
positive place in
which everyone’s
mental health &
wellbeing can
flourish

£

16-17 Year olds not in education, employment or training

19-24 year olds NEET % (Marmot)
Employment related measure from Economic Strategy
Inequality gap in educational attainment narrows
GCSE achieved 5 9-5including English and Maths (%) / GCSE
achieved 5 9-5 including English and Maths with free school
meals status (%) (Marmot)
Inequality in attainment between children eligible for and not
eligible for free schools GCSE
Inequality in attainment between children eligible for and not
eligible for free schools KS2
Resident Survey- Satisfaction with Gateshead as a place to live
People reporting low life satisfaction % (Marmot)
Healthy Life expectancy at birth Female / Male (Years)
(Marmot)
Baseline development on Mental health (low level anxiety to
crisis services & complex individuals
Resident survey- Confidence in the Council / Voice is heard /
General satisfaction

Proportion of adults with a learning disability who live in their
own home or with their family (ASCOF 1G)

Create Conditions for Fair Employment)

All domestic
abuse is
prevented

Investment Strategy & Resources

Revenue 21/22
Gross
Net
£000
£000
146,166
77,755

5 Yr
Capital
£000
47,111

Commissioned spend: tbc
Assets: Asset Strategy Review
Employees 1041.16 FTE

Everyone is able to be an active part of their community
All domestic abuse is prevented

OUR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
Baseline Latest Target DoT Operational Performance
Strategic Performance
To be agreed by July Baseline measures around good
Prevalence of children in year 6 of excess weight (PHOF
2021
CO9a)
physical and mental health
Early help baseline to be developed including children’s
emotional and mental health & wellbeing

Those with learning disabilities in suitable accommodation &
supported into paid employment (ASCOF 1E) (also included in
Prioritise preventing &reducing the scale
& impact of violence & domestic abuse
giving everyone control of their lives
(HWB) Baseline to be developed

•
•

Rate of domestic violence reports / convictions

Baseline Latest Target DoT

To be agreed by
July 2021

Pupils missing 10% school
sessions or more during
academic year
No of Council apprenticeships
Employment related measures to
be determined through Economic
Strategy

Inequality in attainment between
children looked after by the local
authority and those not (KS1 / KS2)

Baseline measures around good
physical and mental health

Consultation respondents
No of young people engaged in
Gateshead Youth Assembly
No of volunteers
No of adaptations carried out (to
enable people to stay in their home)
Total no. of accessible and
adaptable homes built from 2018
baseline
To be informed by baseline
establishment

Baseline development around domestic abuse

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation
• Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber
• Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in prosecution & subsequent penalties Amber
• The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that compromises confidentiality, integrity & availability of
information Amber
• Failure to manage demand and expectations could result in the Council not achieving its Thrive
agenda Amber
• Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & systems Amber
• Failure to address workforce planning & resourcing requirements impacting on service delivery
Green

Qualitative Impact
Evidence of impact (customers, customer profile,
residents, employees others) Assessments,
reviews, project findings, progress checks
- Early help (including rising number of families
needing support; domestic abuse; children’s
emotional health and wellbeing; lost learning)
- Mental health (from low level anxiety to crisis
services, and complex individuals)

Geographic
Impact
(Localities
impact, LIoN data
etc)

ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?
ACTIONS

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
AREAS OF EXCELLENCE
Strategic

Strategic
Strategic

Operational

Operational
Operational

Resources

Resources
Resources

Page 22

CREATE THE CONDITIONS FOR FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND GOOD WORK FOR ALL
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES –
All working age residents have access to good quality, sustainable work with decent pay and conditions
All people in low paid, low skilled jobs have opportunities to improve their skills base so they can more easily achieve personal progression and attain an improved standard of living
HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE THIS? INTERVENTIONS & RESOURCES
Outcome
All working age
residents have access to
good quality,
sustainable work with
decent pay and
conditions

Page 23
All people in low paid,
low skilled jobs have
opportunities to
improve their skills
base so they can more
easily achieve personal
progression and attain
an improved standard
of living

On track DoT
£
Intervention
Intervention from Economic To be
determined July
Strategy
2021
• Visitor Economy
• Green Economy
• Digital Economy
• Local Economy
(Community Wealth
Building)
e.g. Delivery of Gateshead
Quays development
including Conference and
Exhibition Centre
Gateshead Town Centre
Regeneration Masterplan

Baseline to be developed
including impact on the
economy following Covid-19
pandemic
LA7 Recovery Framework
delivery including promotion
of apprenticeships;
Maximise potential of
existing assets to build the
future economy; support for
SMEs; skills for the green
economy

Investment Strategy &
Resources
5 Yr
21/22 Revenue
Capital
Gross
Net
£000
£000
£000
3,655
1,241
99,322
Commissioned Spend: tbc
Assets: Asset Strategy Review
Employees 62.28 FTE tbc

OUR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
Strategic Performance
Unemployment rate (consider break
down e.g. youth; ethnicity; Long Term
ill health etc) / Unemployment % (ONS
Model Based Method) (Marmot)

Baseline Latest

Target

DoT

Baseline Latest Target DoT
Operational Performance
To be agreed July 2021 People with learning disabilities in
To be agreed July 2021
suitable accommodation and supported
into paid employment (ASCOF 1E) (Also in
Ensure all maximise capabilities and control over lives)

Individuals helped into work
Business Rates generated / safeguarded

Business Density
Jobs Density
Sustain Gateshead’s working age
population at a minimum of 2018
baseline of 128,300
Pay of Full-Time Employees (+ lower
percentiles)
GVA Per Hour
Business Survey (tbc) – satisfaction
with Gateshead as a place to do
business
Employment Rate (+ ER Gap)
Economic Inactivity Rate (+ Wants a
Job)
Workless Households (+children in
household where no one works)
WAP Qualified to Level 4+ / No
Qualifications

Workplace Employment in Higher Skilled
Occupations
Residents in higher skilled occupations
(SOC 1-3)
Inequality in life expectancy at birth for
Males / Females (PHOU AO2a) (Marmot)
Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation
• Failure to attract inward investment and
deliver sustainable economic growth Amber
• The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that
compromises confidentiality, integrity &
availability of information Amber
• Failure to address financial gap in the
Council’s budget & systems Amber
• Failure to address workforce planning and
resourcing requirements impacting on
service delivery Green

Businesses supported
Jobs created / safeguarded
Inward investment success
Business expansion projects completed
Individuals moved closer to work
Start ups commenced trading
Additional measures to be identified from
Economic Strategy development

Apprenticeships starts / completion
Apprenticeships at Gateshead Council
/ through apprenticeship levy transfer
Individuals supported (enterprise /
employment)
No residents supported to take training
or education (Housing indicator)

Qualitative Impact
Evidence of impact (customers, customer profile, residents,
employees, others) Assessments, reviews, project findings,
progress checks
-

Poverty including: the impact on the economy following the
Covid-19 pandemic

Geographic Impact
(Localities impact, LIoN data etc)

ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?
ACTIONS

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
AREAS OF EXCELLENCE
Strategic

Strategic
Strategic

Operational

Operational
Operational

Resources

Resources
Resources

Page 24

ENSURE A HEALTHY STANDARD OF LIVING FOR ALL, IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL LAW ON ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL RIGHTS
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES –
All working age residents receive a living wage that considers the true cost of healthy living
Individuals & families are supported to have the best possible financial well-being to access debt and social welfare advice to maximise household income and improve financial management skills

Page 25

HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE THIS? INTERVENTIONS &
RESOURCES
On track DoT
Outcome
Intervention
All working age
Intervention from
residents receive a
Economic Strategy
living wage that
LA7 Recovery
considers the true
cost of healthy living Framework including job security
and quality of
employment
Individuals and
Locality working
families are
development
supported to have
the best possible
Delivery of LA7
financial well-being
Recovery
to access debt and
Framework
social welfare advice including enabling
to maximise
equitable access to
household income
services
and improve
financial
management skills

OUR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
£

Strategic Performance
Households not reaching minimum
income standards (%) (Marmot)
Proportion of residents suggested by
Lion data to be vulnerable
Proportion of residents suggested by
Lion data to be just coping

Baseline
Latest
Target
To be agreed July 2021

% of population living in income
inequality (measure from JSNA/ Lion)

Baseline Latest Target
To be agreed July 2021

Operational Performance
Measures to be developed through
Economic Strategy

DoT

Residents supported through Local
Council Tax Support scheme
No receiving Housing Benefit support
Overall homes Energy SAP rating
No of domestic properties supplied by
District Energy Scheme
% tenants satisfied with the advice
given on rent / debt
% of current Council housing tenants in
arrears (Customer profile tbc)
Council support to maximise household
income tbc

Fuel poverty (Marmot)
Households not reaching minimum
income standards (%) (Marmot)
Gap in annual household income
between highest and lowest
Proportion of population living below
the national poverty line (SDG)
Measures around in work poverty e.g.
Households in poverty where at least
one member is in employment
Baseline development – Poverty
including impact on economy, role of
hubs and need for advice and support
Baseline development including rising
number of families needing support

n

DoT

Local Hardship Grant Awards

Households in Council Tax arrears

Healthy Life expectancy at birth
Female / Male (Years) (Marmot)
Affordable childcare is Identification of
accessible to those who issues to determine
need it
action required

£ in debt managed by the Council
To be determined

Childcare places and costs

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation

Investment Strategy &
Resources (tbc)
5 Yr
21/22 Revenue
Capital
Gross
Net
£000
£000
£000
53,454
728
Commissioned spend: tbc
Assets: Asset Strategy Review
Employees: 58.93 FTE (tbc)

• Failure to attract inward investment and deliver sustainable economic
growth Amber
• The Council is hit by a Cyber-attack that compromises confidentiality,
integrity & availability of information Amber
• Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & systems Amber
• Failure to address workforce planning and resourcing requirements
impacting on service delivery Green
• The implications of EU Exit potentially affecting the availability of Council’s
resources to deliver services which may impact on communities Amber
• Failure to manage demand and expectations could result in the Council not
achieving its Thrive agenda Amber

Qualitative Impact
Evidence of impact (customers, customer profile,
residents, employees, others) Assessments, reviews,
project findings, progress checks
-

Poverty (including: the impact on the economy, the
role of hubs, the need for advice and support)
Early help (including rising number of families
needing support;

Geographic Impact
(Localities impact, LIoN data
etc)

ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?
ACTIONS

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
AREAS OF EXCELLENCE
Strategic

Strategic
Strategic

Operational

Operational
Operational

Resources

Resources
Resources

Page 26

CREATE AND DEVELOP HEALTHY AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES AND PLACES
•
•
•

Local communities and social networks are strong
Social connections are improved for groups in need
All residents have access to a high quality, affordable, warm & energy efficient home

WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES
•
•

All communities have access to good quality natural environment
Gateshead has clean air with low levels of pollution

HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE THIS? - INTERVENTIONS AND RESOURCES
Outcome
Local communities
and social networks
are strong
Social connections
are improved for
groups in need
All residents have
access to a high
quality, affordable,
warm and energy
efficient home

Intervention
Support development of quality community activities,
prioritising neighbourhoods with greatest need, remove
barriers to community participation & support people to be
involved locally. Community Wealth building actions.
Completion of workstream on locality working.
LA7 Recovery Framework including social prescribing
Ensure provision of homes at the right number, type,
quality and affordability, & choice of tenure, to meet
current and future needs of all residents

Proportion of new homes built that are
affordable

Promote low carbon housing development

% new homes and commercial
properties that are zero carbon
% of Council homes that meet the
Decent Homes Standard
Standard to be determined
Use of outdoor space for exercise tbc
To be determined
Air quality in Gateshead
Further measures to be determined

Page 27

5 Yr Capital
£000
148,840

Commissioned Spend: tbc
Assets: Asset Strategy Review
Employees 1256.8FTE (tbc)

Baseline

Latest

Target

To be agreed July 2021

No more than 3% of the Borough’s
total stock is void

LA7 Recovery Framework including investing in
sustainable housing

Investment Strategy & Resources

21/22 Revenue
Gross
Net
£000
£000
147,547
24,090

Strategic Performance
% satisfaction with neighbourhood as
a place to live
To be determined

No of new homes built against annual
housing requirement

Actively support measures that deliver clean air and
environmental improvements, including energy efficiency
Implementation of Policy on Climate Change Emergency
Continue to deliver low carbon heat and power via district
heating networks
Work with businesses to help take green economy
opportunities and reduce carbon/environmental footprint
Ensure goods and services procured by the Council are
compatible with our Climate Emergency commitments

Gateshead has low levels of crime & anti-social behaviour
Gateshead is carbon neutral by 2030

OUR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
DoT £

Intervention through the Housing Strategy

Improve insulation to Council owned properties and
install low carbon heat and energy where feasible
All communities have Improve and invest in the local environment
access to good quality Ensure communities are able to benefit from environment
natural environment
Increase woodland coverage by 250ha by 2050
Gateshead has clean Make Gateshead accessible to all, achieving a shift to
air with low levels of
sustainable forms of travel including LA7 Recovery
pollution
Framework e.g. Active travel, rebuild public transport;
evidence decarbonisation in local transport projects
Increase Council use of low carbon vehicles
Support agile working by expanding use of digital
technology, minimise paper use and reduce the need for
staff to travel
Gateshead has low
Promote community cohesion and the prevention of
levels of crime & anti- crime and anti-social behaviour.
social behaviour
Gateshead is carbon
neutral by 2030

On
track

•
•

Healthy Life expectancy at birth Female
/ Male (Years) (Marmot)

DoT

Baseline

Operational Performance
No Volunteers / volunteer hours

No. supported through hubs
Community asset development (to be
determined)
% of vacant Council properties to let
% of homes empty longer than 6 months
% of households living in statutorily overcrowded
accommodation
Council tenant satisfaction with neighbourhood
as a place to live
Total number of empty properties
% of inspections of sub-standard privately
rented homes
Planning targets met
Overall SAP energy rating for Council homes
No of homes connected to District Energy
Scheme
Complaints about environment
To be determined
Tree planting
% increase No of electric rapid charge points

Council Fleet emissions
Reduce No of journeys made by employees by
car
To be determined

Gateshead is carbon neutral by
2030
Further measures to be developed

(% increase in household waste recycled Measures from Government Waste Strategy
TBC)
Achieve 100% clean energy across the
Council's full range of functions by 2030
% of Council fleet operating on electricity
Council building emissions from stated baseline
% reduction in plastics / other materials harmful to
environment procured by the Council

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation
• Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & systems Amber
• Failure to address workforce planning and resourcing requirements impacting on service delivery Green
• Failure to provide a response during major incident impact on ability to deliver critical services or impact on a community.
Green
• The implications of EU Exit potentially affecting availability of Council resources to deliver services which may impact on
communities Amber
• Failure to manage demand and expectations could result in the Council not achieving its Thrive agenda Amber
• Failure to comply with the housing regulatory standards applicable to local authorities. Red

Target

To be agreed July 2021

Reduction in crime
Incidents of ASB reported

Reduce emissions associated with
council activities to net zero by 2030

Latest

Qualitative Impact
Evidence of impact (customers,
customer profile, residents, employees,
others) Assessments, reviews, project
findings, progress checks

Geographic
Impact
(Localities impact,
LIoN data etc)

DoT

ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?
ACTIONS

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
AREAS OF EXCELLENCE
Strategic

Strategic
Strategic

Operational

Operational
Operational

Resources

Resources
Resources

Page 28

STRENGTHEN THE ROLE AND IMPACT OF ILL HEALTH PREVENTION
WHAT DO WE WANT TO ACHIEVE? – OUR OUTCOMES –
All preventable ill health in Gateshead is reduced, to end the gap in inequalities within the borough

Page 29

HOW WILL WE ACHIEVE THIS? INTERVENTIONS AND
RESOURCES
On track DoT
£
Outcome
Intervention
All preventable ill Health and Wellbeing
health in
Review (Leisure, Libraries,
Gateshead is
Culture Budget
reduced, to end
Implementation)
the gap in
Baseline development
inequalities within including Covid impact; LA
the borough
7 Recovery Framework
including a focus on social
determinants of health;
Accelerate preventative
programmes; Deliver
Community Asset-Based
approaches as a core
principle; Learn lessons
from the pandemic; Embed
health inequalities within,
wider public services &
recovery plans
No-one will be
Housing Strategy
homeless or
interventions
living in
accommodation
that does not
Social Care interventions
provide a safe
and healthy
environment
n
All residents will
be able to access
flexible health &
care support when
& where they need
it

Adult Social Care
interventions
Adult Social Care Budget
implementation
Baseline development

Investment Strategy &
Resources
5 Yr
21/22 Revenue
Capital
Gross
Net
£000
£000
£000
26,578
19,762
37,229
Commissioned Spend: tbc
Assets: Asset Strategy Review
Employees: 248.1 FTE (tbc)

No-one will be homeless or living in accommodation that does not provide a safe and healthy environment

OUR PERFORMANCE AND IMPACT
Strategic Performance
Inequality in life expectancy at birth for Males /
Females (PHOU AO2a) (Marmot)
Healthy Life expectancy at birth Female / Male
(Years) (Marmot)
Life Expectancy at birth – Male / Female (Years)
(Marmot)
Baseline indicators Mental Health (from low level
anxiety to MH crisis services & complex individuals
Baseline indicators on Health behaviours
(smoking, alcohol, substance misuse, physical
activity/diet; long-term impact on NHS of delayed
treatment)

Baseline

Latest

Target

DoT

To be agreed July
2021

Total households owed a duty who were sleeping
rough at time of application
Total households assessed as owed a duty
(Matches H-CLIC Statutory Return terminology
Homelessness: Number of households placed in
bed & breakfasts/hotels
% of homes in the Borough with a category 1 hazard

To be agreed
July 2021

Homelessness: Number of families with children placed in bed
& breakfasts/hotels
Homelessness: Number of single households placed in bed &
breakfasts/hotels who were 16/17 and number of these who
were care leavers
Homes having a category 1 hazard from which, as a direct
result of Council intervention, Category 1 Hazards have been
removed
% of council dwellings with a valid gas safety certificate
Carers survey adult’s carer – satisfaction indicators
Percentage of adult social care users who have as much social
contact as they would like (ASCOF 1I)
No of people accessing Supporting Independence Service,
helping them to be independent for longer

Self-reported user experience (ADSC users survey)
Baseline indicators on Frailty and end of life (caring
responsibilities, loss of independence for
vulnerable people, shielding; grieving)

Risks to Achievement rated after mitigation
• Failure to safeguard vulnerable children & adults Amber
• Non-compliance with statutory requirements resulting in prosecution & penalties Amber
• Council suffers Cyber-attack that compromises confidentiality, integrity & availability of
information Amber
• Failure to manage demand & expectations could result in the Council not achieving Thrive
agenda Amber
• Failure to address financial gap in the Council’s budget & systems Amber
• Failure to address workforce planning & resourcing requirements impacting on service
delivery Green
• Failure to provide a response during a major incident impacting on ability to deliver critical
services or an impact on a community. Green
• Failure to comply with the housing regulatory standards applicable to local authorities. Red

BaselineLatest Target DoT

Operational Performance
Baseline will inform future measures

Qualitative Impact
Evidence of impact (customers, customer profile,
residents, employees others) Assessments, reviews,
project findings, progress checks
- Mental health (from low level anxiety to MH crisis services,
and complex individuals)
- Health behaviours (smoking, alcohol, substance misuse,
physical activity/diet; the long-term impact on the NHS of
delayed treatment)
- Frailty and end of life (caring responsibilities, loss of
independence for vulnerable people, shielding; grieving)

And

Geographic
Impact
(Localities impact,
LIoN data etc)

ANALYSIS – WHAT IS THIS TELLING US?
ACTIONS

AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
AREAS OF EXCELLENCE
Strategic

Strategic
Strategic

Operational

Operational
Operational

Resources

Resources
Resources

Page 30

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

EMPLOYEES

 Employee satisfaction – Gateshead Council a great place to work
 Diverse & inclusive workforce & Council’s Equalities Framework (being revised 2022)
 Maximising Employee Potential – opportunities to learn, develop and aid succession
planning
Previous

Latest

11.4

11.9

64%

73%

Tolerance

DoT

Employees resigning
FTE
Reasons breakdown

Employee Absence
FTE days

Agency costs
Employee survey – Gateshead Council a good
place to work
No of Apprenticeships / Apprenticeship levy %
spend (including transfer)
% employees with access to an agile working
device
% of employees working away from council
buildings (or in an agile manner)
% employees completed GDPR training
Equalities Profile
Consider protected
characteristics

Page 31

% Business Rates collected
Council Tax Support - Claimants (Applications)
% of social housing rent collected
Business (Total Grant Relief) - % of Value Paid
Services for schools business levels
No of data breaches reported
Health and Safety near miss / hazard reports
Strategic/ Operational Risk Register red risks
after mitigation
Audit High Risk recommendations still
outstanding

95.9%
97.5%
23.6%

£18.48m

£21.26m
7,500

Tolerance

DoT

External Audit; Regulators Assessment (Ofsted, CQC, Housing); Compliance; Partners
Previous

Latest

CQC Domiciliary Care & Prime

Good

Good

Ofsted NE Adoption

Good

Good

Ofsted Learning Skills

Good

Good

Osted SEND (Narrative assessment)
98%

64%

DoT

Thrive – Vulnerable LIoN data (tbc)

Ofsted Children’s Social Care Services
95.7%

75%

Tolerance

EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT

 Capital Budget, Revenue Budget, HRA; Levels of and use of Reserves; Income receive
Council’s approach to Risk; Trading Companies
Latest

Latest

Hubs – Requests for support
Telephony contact

-

Previous

Previous

Thrive - Just coping LIoN data (tbc)
% residents satisfied with Gateshead as a
place to live (gap between localities - tbc)
% satisfied with the Council
Commission Happiness Survey e.g. UN
happiness survey
No of stage 3 corporate complaints upheld
No of complaints upheld by the Local
Government Ombudsman
% Increase in online transactions (breakdown)
% births registered within 5 days
£ Increase in online payments

FINANCE, GOVERNANCE & RISK

Revenue Budget position
Budget Savings delivered
CIPFA measures LA sustainability (tbc)
Asset Review on track – milestones met
% of Council spend with local organisations
% Invoices paid on time
% of Council Tax collected

 Thrive – reduce the number of residents vulnerable or just coping
 Residents satisfaction with Gateshead and Gateshead Council
 Improved customer experience through better contact with the Council (right first time)

External Audit (Mazars)
Regulator of Social Housing Consumer
Standards (domains to be identified)
Housing Health & Safety Compliance (New
White Paper)
ISO50 Environmental Standard met

Good

Good

Significant strengths,
No areas for priority
action

Strong & effective
support provided

Comply

Comply

HSE Enforcement Actions
Council working in partnership (Survey
VCS; Private and Public sector partners)
Key Tolerance Key
Achieving or exceeding target
Underachieving within 5%
Underachieving over 5%

Toleranc
e

DoT

EMPLOYEES
Areas of Excellence

Areas of Identified Improvement

FINANCE, AUDIT & RISK

Page 32

Areas of Excellence

Areas of Identified Improvement

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
Areas of Excellence

Areas of Identified Improvement

EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT
Areas of Excellence

Areas of Identified Improvement

WHAT IS THIS TELLING US? ANALYSIS OF CORPORATE POSITION AND ABILITY TO DELIVER PRIORITIES

Agenda Item 4
REPORT TO CABINET
20 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Response to Government Consultation on the Future of
the New Homes Bonus

REPORT OF:

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive

Purpose of the Report
1.

To endorse the response to the following consultation:


The Future of the New Homes Bonus – Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government – appendix 1

Background
2.

The background to the consultation and proposed response are set out in
appendices 1 and 2.
Proposal

3.

To endorse the response set out in appendix 2.
Recommendation

4.

It is recommended that Cabinet endorses the consultation response set out in
appendix 2.
For the following reason:
To enable the Council to contribute a response to the consultation.

CONTACT: Kevin Ingledew extension: 2142

Page 33
1

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1
Government Consultation – The future of the New Homes Bonus
Policy Context

1. The Government is seeking views on the future of the New Homes Bonus (NHB)
from 2022/23 onwards.
2. The New Homes Bonus was introduced in 2011 to provide a financial incentive
for local authorities to encourage and facilitate housing growth in their areas.
3. The Government’s intention is to review the NHB in order to focus the incentive
on ambitious housing delivery. The Government sees the NHB working alongside
wider financial mechanisms, including the infrastructure levy and the Single
Housing Infrastructure Fund (National Home Building Fund).
4. This report includes a response on behalf of Gateshead Council, attached as
Appendix 2.
The consultation ran until 7th April 2021. Ensuring a collaborative response
involving officers from a range of services (including: Finance; Planning Policy;
Housing Services) has necessitated the final response to the consultation being
submitted in advance of Cabinet, however, at the request of Cabinet Members for
Housing and Economy, a briefing on the draft response to the consultation was
circulated to all Members in advance of the consultation deadline.
5. The full consultation is available on the Government’s web site:
The Future of the New Homes Bonus consultation - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Background
6. Under the current scheme the Government pays local authorities a bonus for net
additional home (new builds and conversions), based on the national average
band D council tax rate; with an added premium for the delivery of each
affordable home. The bonus also applies to long-term (over six months) empty
properties brought back into use.
7. The bonus was initially paid for a “legacy” period of 6 years from when each new
property was added to the Council Tax List. Following the 2015 Spending
Review, this period was reduced to 5 years from 2017/18 and 4 years from
2018/19. From 2017/18 a baseline of 0.4% growth of housing stock was
introduced, below which NHB was not paid. As part of the 2020/21 Spending
Round, the Government announced that no new legacy payments would be
made.
8. The NHB, which is not ring-fenced, is top-sliced annually from the Revenue
Support Grant. The Council has continually raised the unfairness of this approach

Page 35

as part of its response to the Local Government Financial Settlement. The net
loss is particularly detrimental to councils with high levels of deprivation, high
need, and low council tax bases and works to the disadvantage of less buoyant
housing markets and as such generally boosts the incomes of the most affluent
areas with the highest housing demand and property values.
The Proposal
9. The consultation seeks views on a number of options for reforming the NHB
programme:
 raising the 0.4% baseline percentage of net annual housing growth
delivered, below which NHB is not paid.
 rewarding improvement on average past housing growth (last 3 years)
 rewarding improvement or high housing growth, based on performance of
individual local authorities.
 Repurpose NHB to support infrastructure investment in areas with low land
values
 introducing a premium for modern methods of construction (MMC)
 introducing an MMC condition on receipt of funding
 requiring an up-to-date local plan
Implications
10. Since the NHB programme was introduced, Gateshead Council has received a
total of £14.87m NHB with a further £0.098m forecast in 2020/21; in respect of
2,014 net new homes built, and long-term empty homes brought back into use
since 2011/12 up to and including 2019/20.
11. The amount of NHB generated would have been greater had the Council met its
housing delivery targets of 2,804 net new homes.
12. The review of NHB has the potential to reduce the amount of NHB that the
Council receives; NHB is already reduced following the cessation of legacy
payments.
Gateshead Council’s response
13. There are 30 questions in the consultation; the response submitted on behalf of
Gateshead is set out in appendix 2.
Implications of Recommended Option
14. Resources:
a) Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms that there are no direct financial implications arising from this
response. Any financial implications following the outcome of the consultation
will be the subject of future reports.

Page 36

b) Human Resources Implications – None.
c) Property Implications – None.
16) Risk Management Implication – No risks associated with responding to the
consultation.
17) Equality and Diversity Implications – No equality and diversity implications
arise directly from this response.
18) Crime and Disorder Implications – No crime implications.
19) Health Implications – No health implications.
20) Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications – No climate emergency
and sustainability implications.
21) Human Rights Implications - No human rights implications.
22) Ward Implications – The outcome from this Government consultation would
impact on all Ward Areas.

Page 37

Appendix 2
MHCLG Consultation – The future of the New Homes Bonus
10th Feb 2021 – 7th Apr 2021
Response on behalf of Gateshead Council

Reform of the New Homes Bonus

Question 1
Do you believe that an incentive like the Bonus has a material and positive effect on
behaviour?
In theory it might, however, the top-slicing of funding from the Revenue Support Grant is
particularly detrimental to councils with high levels of deprivation, high need, and low
council tax bases, where wider austerity impacts are requiring Council’s to make
extremely difficult choices.
The NHB regime also works to the disadvantage of less buoyant housing markets.
Gateshead Council does not lack the ambition and will to see housing growth, however,
much wider financial support is needed that will enable local authorities like Gateshead to
facilitate housing growth and deliver housing targets, at the same time as delivering wider
essential services.
Question 2
If you are a local authority, has the Bonus made a material impact on your own
behaviour?
In reality, in areas like Gateshead, NHB is not supporting housing delivery due to wider
austerity impacts.
NHB does not recognise that in some local authority areas housing delivery is being
significantly constrained by many factors including low development values and viability.
In areas like Gateshead, where many sites have been subject to historical industrial or
chemical processes associated with mining and heavy industry, ground conditions and
contamination make development challenging and increase the costs of bringing forward
development sites. These challenges are compounded in lower development value areas.
The NHB’s reliance on a net housing delivery target, and the introduction of a minimum
delivery threshold, limits its influence in local authorities like Gateshead, where the
composition of housing stock mean demolitions have been necessary in the past, and may
be required in the future (having a consequential impact on net delivery rates), and where

Page 38

overall levels of housing need are relatively low.

Question 3
Are there changes to the Bonus that would make it have a material and positive effect on
behaviour?
For local authorities like Gateshead, where housing delivery is critically suppressed by
many factors including viability, sufficient funding directed at overcoming issues of
weaker housing markets and development viability would be more supportive and
relevant. Financial support is required to overcome barriers to development, including
ground conditions and contamination which make development very challenging, and to
ensure the local authority has sufficient resources and capacity to carry out the intensive
work to facilitate and drive housing growth. This would be a more sustainable approach
to delivering the Government’s aspirations for a levelling-up of the Country.
Including a premium for homes built on brownfield land would, similarly, support a
sustainable approach to development

Question 4
Should the government retain the current 80/20 split in any reformed Bonus, or should it
be more highly weighted towards the District Councils or County Councils?
N/A
Question 5
Should the affordable housing premium be retained in a reformed Bonus?
Yes
Question 6
Is £350 per additional affordable home the right level of premium, or should this level be
increased or decreased?
An increase in NHB could help support the delivery of affordable homes, however,
financial support for the delivery of affordable homes should be based upon evidence of
need, and directed to areas where delivery of those homes is fettered by matters such as
viability, particularly where ground conditions and contamination, and lower
development values, make development very challenging. NHB is not sufficiently

Page 39

targeted; and is not linked to either the sum of funding required to offset viability issues,
nor to the point at which financial support is required in the development process.

Question 7
Should a reformed Bonus continue to reward local authorities for long-term empty homes
brought back in to use?
Yes, however, this should not be seen as condoning the conversion of properties into
homes that fail to provide adequate space standards inside and outside; falling well below
the Nationally Described Space Standards.

Question 8
Should the Bonus be awarded on the basis of the most recent year of housing delivery or
the most recent three years?
A three year average could smooth out fluctuations, and could also be consistent with the
housing delivery test, which is based on the preceding three years' performance.

Question 9
Do you agree that the baseline should be raised?
No, this would have a detrimental impact on local authority areas where development is
fettered by matters of weak housing markets and viability. As NHB is also based on net
growth it would have an additional negative effect on local authorities that are
progressing area regeneration involving the demolition of properties that are no longer fit
for the future.
Question 10
If the baseline is to be raised, should it be raised to 0.6%, 0.8% or 1% of housing growth
since the preceding year?
The baseline should not be raised, unless designed in a way that would support a
levelling-up of the Country.
Question 11
Why should the government opt for the baseline you have recommended in answer to
the previous question?

Page 40

The baseline should not be raised, unless designed in a way that would support a
levelling-up of the Country.
Question 12
If the baseline is to be raised, should this change be combined with higher payment rate?
The baseline should not be raised, unless designed in a way that would support a
levelling-up of the Country.

Question 13
Should the government adopt a new payment formula for the Bonus which rewards local
authorities for improvement on their average past performance with respect to housing
growth?
This would not support local authorities that are struggling to deliver their planned
housing growth due to weaker housing markets and development viability.

Question 14
If the government is to adopt such a payment formula, above what percentage (x%) of
average past net housing additions should the Bonus begin to be paid? In other words,
what should the value of x be?
This would not support local authorities that are struggling to deliver their planned
housing growth due to weaker housing markets and development viability.
Question 15
If the government is to adopt such a payment formula, over what period should the
annual average of past net additions be calculated? Should it be a period of 5 years or 10
years?
This would not support local authorities that are struggling to deliver their planned
housing growth due to weaker housing markets and development viability.

Question 16
Should the government adopt a new payment formula for the Bonus which rewards
either improved performance or high housing growth? Please explain why or why not.

Page 41

This form of reward alone would not support local authorities that are struggling to
deliver their planned housing growth due to development viability. A payment formula
could reward improved performance, particularly where local authorities are overcoming
viability, however, it should go hand in hand with additional support to mitigate viability,
particularly in lower value areas, and where ground conditions and contamination make
bringing forward sites very challenging.
Question 17
Above what percentage (x%) of average past net housing additions should the Bonus
begin to be paid? In other words, what should the value of x be in this proposed hybrid
payment formula?
This would not support local authorities that are struggling to deliver their planned
housing growth due to weaker housing markets and development viability or wider
constraints.
Question 18
Above what percentage (y%) increase in the authority’s housing stock should the Bonus
be paid? In other words, what should the value of y be in this proposed hybrid payment
formula?
This would not support local authorities that are struggling to deliver their planned
housing growth due to weaker housing markets and development viability.
Question 19
Do you agree with the proposal to repurpose the Bonus to balance the effects of the
Infrastructure Levy by providing an incentive to authorities to bring forward development
in lower value areas?
Gateshead welcomes the intention of supporting infrastructure development in areas of
low development value, however, this should not be based upon an idea of reward, but a
recognition that in areas of low development value and high development costs, the issue
is the market’s reluctance to develop, not the supply of land suitable for development.
Question 20
What, in your view, would be the advantages and disadvantages of repurposing the Bonus
in this way?
See answer to Q 19
Question 21

Page 42

If the option is to be pursued, should this reform to the Bonus be postponed until the new
planning system is enacted?
Yes
Question 22
In your view, what levers do local authorities have at their disposal to encourage uptake
of MMC, and how impactful is such encouragement likely to be?
The focus on MMC should perhaps be better directed towards low carbon and energy
efficiency and design quality. In Gateshead, the use and piloting of MMC has been
achieved on a number of housing developments where strong relationships between the
Council and developers have been fostered. Local authorities can encourage MMC,
however, if MMC proves to be less viable for developers NHB is unlikely to have an
impact. We also know that there remain reservations about MCC by some lenders and
some MMC still needs to be tried and tested. More central government research and
development, and engagement with developers is required to help overcome scepticism.

Question 23
Should the Bonus include a premium for new homes built using MMC? Please explain why
or why not.
No, see answer to Q 22
Question 24
If you are a local authority, would such a premium make a material impact on your
behaviour? Would it, for example, encourage you to look for opportunities to bring
through developments that are amenable to the use of MMC?
This would not be a priority in Gateshead.
It would not impact on our behaviour as we are already looking to drive housing
development; if MMC would support delivery it would be taken into consideration
anyway, however, the cost of delivery can be higher than standard construction methods.
Question 25
How onerous a data burden would this option impose on local authorities? Do you agree

Page 43

with the proposal to collect the MMC data at the point at which a local authority signs off
a building as habitable?
Given other priorities, this would be an unwelcome additional burden
Question 26
Should the government make it a condition of receiving the Bonus that w% of net
additional homes used MMC in order for the Bonus to be paid? If so what should the
value of w be?
No. The Council is well aware of the potential benefits of MMC but there needs to be a
balance to ensure housing can be delivered without additional burdens.
Question 27
Why should or shouldn’t such a condition be introduced?
See answer to Q22

Question 28
Do you think that local authorities should be required to have a local plan, or
demonstrate satisfactory progress towards one, in order to receive funding?
Yes
Question 29
Do you think the bonus should be paid at a reduced rate until such time as a local
authority has an up-to-date local plan in place, and should it by 25%, 50% or 75%?
25%
Question 30
If you are a local authority, would this encourage you to develop or maintain an up-todate local plan?
It is unlikely to be a determining factor for local authorities which, in spite of ever
reducing resources, are diligently working to ensure their local plan is up to date and
effective.

Page 44

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
REPORT TO CABINET
20 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Gateshead Council Equality Objectives 2021-22

REPORT OF:

Darren Collins, Strategic Director Resources & Digital

Purpose of the Report
1.

Cabinet is asked to approve the proposed equality objective for 2021-22, the aim
of which is to improve the Council’s understanding of the needs of Gateshead
residents and its workforce with protected characteristics, in order to deliver the
council’s Thrive pledges and policy objectives of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy.
Our equalities work aims to address the challenges of inequality across
Gateshead, and to demonstrate the Council’s compliance with the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED).
Background

2.

The Equality Act 2010 places a requirement on public bodies to demonstrate
compliance with each part of the PSED. This requires public authorities to have
due regard to the need to:

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any
other conduct with is unlawful under the Equality Act 2010;

advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not; and

foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

3.

As a public sector organisation, we also have to meet two specific duties;

to publish information to demonstrate how we are complying with the Public
Sector Equality Duty; and,

to prepare and publish equality objectives (at least every four years).

.
Gateshead Context for new Equality Objectives 2021-22
4.

Since publication of the current set of equality objectives in 2016, the Council has
adopted an entirely new strategic context. We refreshed the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment, adopted Thrive as our strategic approach, and agreed a new
long-term Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

5.

The Thrive agenda is driven by the desire to tackle inequalities and arises from
the principles of fairness and improving the quality of life for everyone in
Gateshead. This aligns the Council’s Policy Framework with advancing equality
of opportunity for all and celebrating the diversity of our workforce and
communities. This is supported by the corporate equalities approach across all
groups and services.

Page
1 47

Proposed Equality Objective for 2021-22
6.

To make full use of the 2021 Census to update and improve our knowledge and
understanding of the extent of particular protected characteristics within the
Gateshead population.

7.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic there is a significant amount of planned
qualitative and quantitative research taking place over the next 6-12 months to
help the Council better understand the issues and impact faced by all our
residents and vulnerable communities.

8.

It is proposed that for 2021-22 the Council focuses on delivery of a single equality
objective;
to establish an equality baseline and deeper understanding of the issues
and needs for Gateshead by protected characteristic; to include our
residents and our workforce, to support delivery of our strategic approach
Thrive and the Council pledges;
 put people and families at the heart of everything we do,
 tackle inequality so people have a fair chance,
support our communities to support themselves and each other,
 invest in our economy to provide opportunities for employment,
innovation and growth, and
 work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead.

9.

During 2021-22 the Council will also continue to undertake current planned work
and activities to help us deliver Thrive and tackle inequalities. These include;
 covid-19 response work to support the vulnerable and those in crisis and
Recovery planning for Gateshead post Covid-19.
 delivery against the Health and Wellbeing strategy priorities.
 developing and implementing future locality arrangements.
 support for our workforce to develop resilience and mental health and
wellbeing.
Future Equalities Approach

10.

Once the evidence base for protected characteristics in Gateshead is established
we will then need to develop and consult on future equality objectives.

11.

Key to this would be a Council-wide approach to delivering equalities so that
specific actions and progress can be monitored by embedding equalities within
the new Performance Management and Improvement Framework and
demonstrating impact on our residents and workforce. The overall purpose of the
approach is to ensure the council delivers against Thrive and Health and
Wellbeing Strategy priorities.

12.

A review of the Corporate Equalities Framework and relaunch of integrated
impact assessments across the Council would also form part of this work to help
embed equalities within and across all council services.
Recommendation

13.

Cabinet is asked to approve the equality objective proposed for 2021-22;

Page 248

To establish an equality baseline and deeper understanding of the issues and
needs for Gateshead by protected characteristic; to include our residents and our
workforce, in order to support delivery of our strategic approach Thrive and the
Council pledges.
For the following reason:
To demonstrate the Council’s commitment to tackling inequality in Gateshead,
whilst ensuring compliance with the Public Sector Equality Duty.

CONTACT: Rachel Mason extension 2069

Page
3 49

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The Council’s strategic approach Thrive and the Gateshead Health and
Wellbeing Strategy has outlined the challenges faced by Gateshead in terms of
inequality. The proposed equality objective has been developed to improve our
knowledge and understanding of these inequalities for people with protected
characteristics in Gateshead and to support the delivery of the shared outcomes
described within the Council Policy Framework.
Background

2.

The Equality Act 2010 places a requirement on public bodies to demonstrate
compliance with each part of the PSED. This requires public authorities to have
due regard to the need to:

eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any
other conduct with is unlawful under the Equality Act 2010;

advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not; and

foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.
These are often referred to as the three aims of the general equality duty.

3.

As a public sector organisation, we also have to meet two specific duties;

to publish information to demonstrate how we are complying with the Public
Sector Equality Duty; and,

to prepare and publish equality objectives (at least every four years).
The specific duties are intended to help organisations improve performance on
the general duty, by improving focus and transparency

.
4.

Since the introduction of the specific duties in 2012, the Council has committed to
and reported against two sets of equality objectives.

5.

We meet the requirement to publish information on compliance with the PSED
through our annual Equality and Diversity Report. The current annual report for
2020 is published on the council’s website.

6.

We also follow best practice and undertake Integrated Impact Assessments to
consider the actual or potential impact of council strategies, policies, services or
budget proposals on people and their surroundings. They also ensure the
decision-making process is transparent and help to mitigate any impact on
people with protected characteristics.
Gateshead Context for new Equality Objectives 2021-22

7.

Since publication of the current set of equality objectives in 2016, the Council has
adopted an entirely new strategic context. We refreshed the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment, adopted Thrive as our strategic approach, and agreed a new
long-term Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Page 450

8.

The Thrive agenda is driven by the desire to tackle inequalities and arises from
the principles of fairness and improving the quality of life for everyone in
Gateshead. This aligns the Council’s Policy Framework with advancing equality
of opportunity for all and celebrating the diversity of our workforce and
communities. This is supported by the corporate equalities approach across all
groups and services.

9.

We are developing a new Corporate Performance Management and
Improvement Framework (PMIF). This will better reflect the priorities of the
Council enable it to manage performance and demonstrate delivery against
Thrive priorities including inequality.

10.

We need to understand the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Gateshead
and its residents and develop a recovery plan to tackle growing inequalities and
deliver the Thrive agenda.

11.

Currently The Gateshead Housing Company (TGHC) work towards achieving a
set of equality objectives and report equality information and data as required to
meet the PSED. Alignment of equality objectives, reporting and data will be
undertaken within the Council from April 2021 following the reintegration of
housing and property management services.

12.

Work is also ongoing to review the Council’s Workforce Strategy, which will
include actions relating to equalities in the workforce. The current council
workforce profile by protected characteristic is published in our annual report
taken from employee data.
Proposal for 2021-22

13.

To make full use of the timely opportunity presented by the 2021 Census, which
is the source for much of the current Gateshead Equality Profile. Our knowledge
of the extent of particular protected characteristics within the Gateshead
population is, in some cases, 10 years out of date. We will analyse the emerging
data and enhance our knowledge and understanding of our residents including
by their protected characteristics. A draft timetable of census data releases will
be published by ONS in July 2021.

14.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic there is a significant amount of planned
qualitative and quantitative research taking place over the next 6-12 months to
help the Council better understand the impact faced by all our residents and
vulnerable communities. This includes;
 Gateshead Household Survey (March 2021)
 University of Durham research project – impact of Covid on vulnerable
households in Gateshead
 Public Health embedded research projects
 Partner and stakeholder commissioned research (NELEP & others)
 Communities and localities research
 My HR&Payroll data – council and TGHC workforce

15.

It is proposed that for 2021-22 the Council focuses on delivery of a single equality
objective;

Page
5 51

to establish an equality baseline and deeper understanding of the issues
and needs for Gateshead by protected characteristic; to include our
residents and our workforce, in order to support delivery of our strategic
approach Thrive and the council pledges;
 put people and families at the heart of everything we do,
 tackle inequality so people have a fair chance,
support our communities to support themselves and each other,
 invest in our economy to provide opportunities for employment,
innovation and growth, and
 work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead.
16.

During 2021-22 the Council will also continue to undertake current planned work
and activities to help us deliver Thrive and tackle inequalities. These include;
 Covid-19 response work to support the vulnerable and those in crisis and
Recovery planning for Gateshead post Covid-19.
 delivery against the Health and Wellbeing strategy priorities
 developing and implementing future locality arrangements
 support for our workforce to develop resilience and good mental health and
wellbeing.

17.

This will replace the current Gateshead Equalities Profile and actions will also
include work to update our workforce information held on all employees
(including TGHC employees returning to the Council) and their protected
characteristics.
Future Equality Objectives 2022-23

18.

Once the evidence base for protected characteristics in Gateshead is updated,
we will then need to develop and consult on future equality objectives.

19.

A review of the Corporate Equalities Framework and relaunch of integrated
impact assessments across the Council would also form part of this work to help
embed equalities within and across all council services.
Governance, responsibilities & implementation

20.

This is an opportunity to re-emphasize the importance of equalities across the
whole of the Council, including how we deliver equalities going forward through a
refocused Corporate Equalities Framework.

21.

The role of Service Directors across the Council to be a key part of this work to
help shape, develop and deliver against equality objectives through service
delivery.

22.

Key to implementation of this would be a Council-wide approach to delivering
equalities so that specific actions and progress can be monitored by embedding
equalities within the new PMIF and demonstrating impact on our residents and
workforce. The overall purpose of the approach is to ensure the council delivers
against Thrive and Health and Wellbeing Strategy priorities.

Page 652

Consultation
23.

Consultation has taken place with the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council,
as well as the Support Cabinet Member for Diversity and Equalities.
Alternative Options

24.

There are no alternative options with regard to the report as the recommendation
supports the Council’s specific duty to comply with the Public Sector Equality
Duty.
Implications of Recommended Option

25.

Resources
a) Financial Implications – There are no financial implications arising
directly from this report.
b) Human Resource Implications – The equality objective relating to the
workforce will support the Council’s ability to meet its duties under the
Equality Act 2010.
c) Property Implications – There are no property implications arising
directly from this report.

26.

Risk Management Implications – There are no risk management implications
arising directly from this report.

27.

Equality and Diversity Implications – The equality objective has been
developed with the aim of improving the lives of Gateshead’s residents with
protected characteristics.

28.

Crime and Disorder Implications – There are no direct crime and disorder
implications arising directly as a result of this report.

29.

Health Implications – There are no direct health implications arising directly as
a result of this report.

30.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - There are no direct
climate emergency and sustainability implications arising directly as a result of
this report.

31.

Human Rights Implications - There are no direct human rights implications
arising directly as a result of this report.

32.

Ward implications – There are no direct area and ward implications arising
directly as a result of this report.
Background Information

33.

The following background papers have been used to inform this report:

Page
7 53




Objectives and the Equality Duty: A Guide for Public Authorities, Equality and
Human Rights Commission
Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020

Page 854

Agenda Item 6
REPORT TO CABINET
20 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates – Transfer of
Uncollectable Amounts

REPORT OF:

Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

Purpose of the Report
1.

This report asks Cabinet to approve the transfer of outstanding balances from
Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) accounts, where all possible recovery
action has been taken and the balances are now considered to be uncollectable.
Background

2.

Council Tax and NDR charges are levied in accordance with statutory legislation.
Under the localisation of Non-Domestic Rates Business Rates, a proportion of
monies collected by the Council are retained locally to form part of the core funding
of the Council.

3.

Charges which remain unpaid are subject to prompt appropriate recovery action.
Despite this action there remain some debts, which are considered uncollectable.

4.

The amounts, which have been identified as uncollectable are summarised at
Appendix 1. These balances represent the full amount identified as uncollectable at
the end of the financial year 2020-21.
Proposal

5.

It is proposed to transfer the balance of 2,223 accounts to the value of £275,190.02
for Council Tax and 76 accounts to the value of £56,707.52 for Non-Domestic
Rates.

6.

In addition to this, balances of £500.00 or less on 2,864 individual accounts totalling
£203,477.71 in respect of Council Tax and 54 accounts totalling £896.43 for NonDomestic Rates, have been transferred under delegated powers in accordance with
Financial Regulation 8.10.

7.

The total proposed transfer of uncollectable balances is therefore £478,667.73 in
respect of Council Tax and £57,603.95 in respect of Non-Domestic Rates.

Page 55
1 of 4

Recommendations
8.

It is recommended that Cabinet agree to:
(i)

The transfer of 2,223 uncollectable accounts in respect of Council Tax
balances totalling £275,190.02

(ii)

The transfer of 76 uncollectable accounts of Non-Domestic Rates balances
totalling £56,707.52.

(iii)

Note the action taken under delegated powers to transfer Council Tax and
Non-Domestic Rates accounts with balances of £500 or less identified in
paragraph 6 of this report.

For the following reason:
(i)

To ensure the effective management of the Council’s resources.

(ii)

To ensure that the Council Accounts accurately reflect the correct financial
position.

CONTACT:

Marisa Jobling ext 3581

Page 56
2 of 4

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The proposals in this report are consistent with Council priorities and in particular
ensuring that effective use is made of Council resources to support the framework
for “making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives”.
Background

2.

The transfer reflects Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates accounts where the
recovery process has been exhausted and it is no longer cost effective to pursue
the cases through the court process.
Details of Debts Included in Transfer

3.

The tables below give details of the reason and the year that the debt was created.

Council Tax
Year of Debit
Pre 2019
2019/20
2020/21

Deceased
£’000's
29
5
2

Insolvency
£’000's
50
25
21

Other
£’000's
241
82
24

Total
£’000's
320
112
47

Total

479

Non-Domestic Rates
Year of Debit
Pre 2019
2019/20
2020/21

Insolvency
£’000's
26
24
0

Other
£’000's
0
0
8

Total
£’000's
26
24
8

Total

58

Consultation
4.

The Leader of the Council has been consulted on this report.
Alternative Options

5.

No alternative options are proposed. A regular review of debt owed to the Council
is an essential part of good recovery and accounting procedures.

Page 57
3 of 4

Implications of Recommended Option
6.

Resources
a) Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital confirms
that the cost of the transfer of £478,667.73 for Council Tax and ££57,603.95 for
Non-Domestic Rates can be met from the bad debt provision within the
Collection Fund.
b) Human Resources Implications – Nil
c) Property Implications - Nil

7.

Risk Management Implications – The transfers mitigate the risk of entries in the
Council’s statement of accounts being incorrect.

8.

Equality and Diversity Implications – Nil

9.

Health Implications - Nil

10.

Crime and Disorder Implications - Nil

11.

Climate Emergency & Sustainability Implications - Nil

12.

Human Rights Implications – Nil

13.

Ward Implications – All Wards

Page 58
4 of 4

Agenda Item 7
REPORT TO CABINET

2

TITLE OF REPORT:

Local Bus Board for Gateshead

REPORT OF:

Peter Udall, Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation
and Growth

Purpose of the Report
1.

To approve the establishment and initial membership of a Local Bus Board
for Gateshead.

Background
2.

The North East Joint Transport Committee (JTC) has established a regular
Bus Forum with representatives of the regional bus operators (known jointly
as NE Bus). The first of these meetings was held in September 2020.

3.

The Forum has been established partly through a longstanding concern from
bus users and elected Members across the area as a whole regarding the
lack of consultation and involvement in commercial decisions. In addition, the
increased financial role of both central and local government in the bus
industry, particularly through the Covid pandemic, has afforded a greater
opportunity for improved partnership and an increased desire from
government to see this happen.

4.

The overarching purpose of the JTC/NE Bus Forum is to allow senior
politicians to meet with senior NE Bus representatives to increase
collaborative understanding between the JTC and bus operators. It will also
allow JTC to offer appropriate levels of influence over the decisions of bus
operators in the best interests of the North East bus network.

5.

The intention is that the Forum should be supported by a Local Bus Board for
each Council area in the region, where discussion can take place between
elected Members, officers, bus operators and other stakeholders on the detail
of the bus network and specifically on the local impact of forthcoming
changes to routes, times and fares. A draft Terms of Reference for the Board
is attached as Appendix 3. The JTC/NE Bus Forum is not envisaged as the
place where such detailed issues would be debated.

6.

There is already an established East Gateshead Bus Alliance and a long-held
aspiration to mirror that in West Gateshead. The current proposal is that the
Local Bus Board should sit alongside, rather than replace, existing
arrangements.
This will allow the work of the Local Bus Board to

Page 59

complement that of the Alliance(s), whose somewhat different remit suggests
they should continue in parallel.
Proposal
7.

It is proposed that the Cabinet should approve the establishment of a Local
Bus Board for Gateshead and the adoption of the initial structure for the
Board set out in Appendix 2.

Recommendation
8.

It is recommended that Cabinet;
i)
ii)

approves the establishment of a Local Bus Board for Gateshead.
approves the initial structure of the Board set out in Appendix 2.

For the following reason:
To support a sustainable transport system capable of supporting the
Gateshead’s environmental, social and economic objectives.

Page 60

APPENDIX 1
Local Bus Board for Gateshead
Policy context
1.

The proposal is consistent with the Council’s strategic approach ‘Making
Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives’; working towards a transport
system that supports the pledges to:






Put people and families at the heart of everything we do
Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance
Support our communities to support themselves and each other
Invest in our economy to provide opportunities for employment, innovation
and growth
Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead

Consultation
2.

Consultation has taken place with the Cabinet Members for Environment and
Transport.

Alternative options
3.

To not establish a Local Bus Board for Gateshead would miss out on an
opportunity to foster local joint working and information exchange with bus
operators.

4.

Alternative initial structures for the Board could be established, but the proposal
is seen as good starting point and the Board will able to expand and alter its
membership as workload and experience dictates.

Implications of Recommendation
5.

Resources:
a.

b.

c.

6.

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms that there are no direct financial implications arising from this
report.
Human Resources Implications – There are no human resource
implications arising from this report. It is envisaged that the Board
meetings will be arranged to follow the existing East Gateshead Bus
Alliance Stakeholder Board meetings so at to reduce administration and
allow it to be managed within existing resources.
Property Implications - There are no direct property implications arising
from this report.

Risk Management Implication – There are no risk management implications.

Page 61

7.

Equality and Diversity Implications – The proposals will assist in reducing
social exclusion by improving access for the young, elderly, unemployed/low
waged and people with disabilities.

8.

Crime and Disorder Implications – There are no crime and disorder
implications.

9.

Health Implications – The Board aims to improve bus services which in turn
improve access to services and facilities that enhance people’s health and
wellbeing.

10. Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications – The proposal will
assist in providing the basis for a sustainable transport system capable of
supporting the Borough’s environmental, social and economic objectives in a
sustainable fashion. In particular, reducing car dependence, thereby
contributing to important aims, including improved air quality and combatting
climate change.
11. Human Rights Implications – There are no human rights implications.
12. Ward Implications – All.

Page 62

APPENDIX 2
Local Bus Board for Gateshead – Proposed Structure
Representing
Gateshead
Council

Nexus
Bus
Operators
Stakeholders

Membership
Cabinet Member for Environment & Transport – to chair the meeting
Four additional Members with a geographical spread across the
Borough, with one being an existing representative on the East
Gateshead Bus Alliance Stakeholder Board.
To nominate one representative
NE Bus to nominate appropriate representation
One representative from:
 Tyne and Wear Passenger Transport User Group;
 Gateshead Older Peoples Assembly;
 Gateshead Youth Council;
 Disability Groups/Forum – potential representative from the
former Gateshead Access Panel.
 Chamber of Commerce

Page 63

APPENDIX 3
Local Bus Board for Gateshead – Draft Terms of Reference
1. Board aims
The overarching aim of the Gateshead Local Bus Board is to allow elected members,
including the relevant Cabinet Member, to meet with bus operators’ representatives
to increase understanding between the parties involved. Local organisations such as
voluntary sector groups will also be represented on the board, which provides an
opportunity to utilise their knowledge and experience of the bus network in its work.
This will include, but is not limited to, reporting and discussion of forthcoming
commercial bus service changes in Gateshead, and consideration of bus network
planning work which may be carried out at regional level. It may also include the
discussion of improved working arrangements for bus service reliability such as
service improvements or highway infrastructure measures.
2. Frequency and conduct of meetings
Attendance at Board meetings will be by invitation and is expected to include:
 The Cabinet Member for Transport and Environment plus a further 4 elected
Members
 Representatives of bus operators
 A representative of Nexus
 A range of stakeholders
Additional officers may also attend the Board to support Board members.
The Board is not a decision-making body and its meetings will not be held in public.
Meetings will be chaired by the Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport or the
nominated substitute.
The agenda for each meeting will be prepared by officers in consultation with the
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport. A meeting note will be prepared and
circulated to all attendees.
The ordinary frequency of meetings will be quarterly and these will normally be held
the same day as meetings of the East Gateshead Bus Alliance Stakeholder Board.
Additional meetings may be arranged by exception and at the discretion of the
Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport: two weeks’ notice will normally be
given. Any requests for an additional meeting should be made in writing, stating the
reason for the request, to the Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport.
Task and finish groups may be set up: these will act within the remit as specified by
the Board and a written report of their activity will be provided to the next meeting of
the Board.

Page 64

3. Procedure for participation in bus network planning
It is understood that in March 2021 the North East Joint Transport Committee will be
invited to approve a project based on network planning to develop the bus network.
Updates on the development of this project will be provided to the Board and there
will be discussion of how the Board can provide input to this process and highlight
any appropriate local matters.
4. Procedure for reporting forthcoming commercial bus service changes or
other matters which bus operator representatives wish to raise
The procedure to be observed for notifying the Board of forthcoming changes to
commercial bus services will be:
a. Bus operator representatives will provide a written report to the Board containing
as a minimum:
o Commentary of any proposed changes including but not limited to revisions to
routes, frequencies, hours of operation and the type(s) of vehicles used;
o Full proposed timetables;
o Date of introduction in accordance with the proposed notification and
registration process.
b. These changes will be discussed by the Board and the Cabinet Member for
Environment and Transport will agree on a written response to be sent to
operators setting out the Board’s comments and requesting a response to be
provided by the next meeting of the Board.
c.

Bus operator representatives will then provide a written response to the Board to
be discussed at the next available Board meeting.

The above procedure will be observed regarding any other matters bus operator
representatives wish to raise, unless the urgency of the matter means it has to be
raised verbally at the meeting
5. Procedure for reporting matters by other Board Members
The procedure to be observed for Board Members to raise matters will be:
a.
b.
c.
d.

The Chair should be made aware of the intention to raise a matter in advance
of the Board meeting in question
A written report will be prepared for presentation at the Board meeting unless
the urgency of the matter means it has to be raised verbally at the meeting.
Following discussion at the meeting, the Board will identify whether a written
response is required from any Board Member or Members.
Should a written response be required, it will be provided to the Board to be
discussed at the next available Board meeting.

6. Review of Terms of Reference and membership
The Terms of Reference and membership of the Board will be reviewed on an
annual basis and approved by the Board.

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
REPORT TO CABINET
20 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Proposals for School Term Dates 2022/23

REPORT OF:

Caroline O’Neill, Strategic Director of Children, Adults and
Families

Purpose of the Report
1.

The report asks Cabinet to approve the School Term Dates for 2022/23.

Background
2.

In order to allow schools, parents and other stakeholders to plan into the future, it is
necessary to agree school term dates a significant period in advance.

Proposal
3.

It is proposed that the calendar for 2022/23, attached as Appendix 2 to this report, be
approved.

Recommendations
4.

It is recommended that Cabinet agrees the dates set out in the School Term Dates for
2022/23 as set out in appendix 2.
For the following reasons:
(i) To allow future planning to take place.
(ii) Make effective and efficient use of Council resources.

CONTACT: Julie McDowell extension 8644

Page 67

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

This proposal supports the Council’s strategic approach of Making Gateshead a Place
Where Everyone Thrives.

Background
2.

The Education (School Day and School Year) (England) Regulations 1999 (SI 1999 No.
3181) require schools to have at least 380 half-day sessions (190 contact days with
pupils) and (195 days for staff) in each school year. This is consistent with the 195 days
a year required by a teacher's statutory conditions of service: the additional five days are
for continual professional development. The term dates for Community Voluntary
controlled and Special Schools are determined by the local authority (LA) whilst
Voluntary-Aided schools and Academies are decided by the governing body of each
school. This means that Governing Bodies of Voluntary Aided schools and Academies
can depart from the LA term dates if they wish. Many Voluntary Aided schools can and
do depart from those dates determined by the LA and there is no requirement to consult
the LA, however, such schools are required to act reasonably when setting their dates.
Given the continuing development of the DfE Academy conversion process it is possible
that some schools may develop and determine different term date calendars following
changes to their school status. Whenever possible any such changes will be published
by the LA.

3.

The Local Government Association (LGA) Standing Committee on the School Year have
previously circulated proposed School Term Calendar with a view to encouraging local
authorities towards a degree of standardisation of dates. This is based on the following
principles:







Start the school year on a September date as near as possible to 1 September.
Equalise teaching and learning blocks (roughly 2x7 and 4x6 weeks).
Establish a two-week spring break in early April irrespective of the incidence of the
Easter Bank Holiday. (Where the break does not coincide with the Bank Holiday the
date should be, as far as practicable, nationally agreed and as consistent as possible
across all local authorities.)
Allow for the possibility of a summer holiday of at least six weeks for those schools
which want this length of break.
Identify and agree annually designated periods of holiday, including the summer
holiday, where Head Teachers are recommended not to arrange teaching days.

4.

The proposed term dates in appendix 2 are the same as neighbouring Local Authorities
to ensure a degree of consistency across the region.

5.

The proposal starts the term on the 5th September 2022 which avoids broken school
weeks as outlined in the 2021/22 report and is in line with the term dates for all other
Local Authorities. This also fixes the spring bank holiday in line with the Local
Government Association strategy establishing a two-week spring break in early April
which also covers two bank holidays. It allows 3 CPD days in term time requiring the 2
remaining training days to be completed as twilight sessions. It is important to achieve,

Page 68

as near as possible, a match with neighbouring LAs. Parents resident in Gateshead and
who work in other LAs or have children in other LA schools and vice versa can make
better arrangements for their childcare and give regard to a wide range of personal and
domestic requirements. Conflicting dates also work against the effective and efficient use
of resources between LAs when collaborating on joint events or on the delivery of truancy
sweeps.
Consultation
6.

The proposed dates have been shared with other local authorities in the region,
Gateshead Head Teachers, Teachers’ JCC membership, Unison, GMB and other
representatives, the Diocesan Bodies and the Cabinet Member for Children and Young
People.
Alternative Options

7.

In theory there are many options that can facilitate arriving at a school term calendar
which allocates 190 teaching (contact with pupil) days and 5 continued professional
development days. Normally it is not viewed helpful to develop what could result in a
broad range of choices, as it is contrary to the principle of trying to achieve a degree of
regional and national alignment.
Implications of Recommended Option

8.

Resources
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital confirms
that there are no financial implications as a result of this report.

b)

Human Resources Implications - advance notice of school term dates enables
parents and other stakeholders to consider a broad range of domestic and personal
arrangements.

c)

Property Implications - None

9.

Risk Management Implication - None.

10.

Equality and Diversity Implications – Every effort is made in setting dates to take
account of holiday requirements created and a result of faith.

11.

Crime and Disorder Implications - Evidence does show the potential for an increase in
youth crime and disorder and antisocial behaviour during periods when young people are
not in school. The Council seeks to address this ‘risk’ by collaborating with partners to
offer activity programmes during common holiday periods.

12.

Health Implications - None

13.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - None

14.

Human Rights Implications – None.

15.

Ward Implications - All.

Page 69

16.

Background InformationThe Education (School Day and School Year) (England) regulations 1999(SI 1999 No
3181)

Page 70

APPENDIX 2
Gateshead Term and Holiday Dates

Academic Year 2022/23
194 TERM DAY ENVELOPE
Bank Holiday
Holiday

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Page 71

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

AUGUST 2022
8 15 22
29
9 16 23
30
10 17 24
31
11 18 25
12 19 26
13 20 27
14 21 28

1
2
3
4
5

FEBRUARY 2023
6 13 20
27
7 14 21
28
8 15 22
9 16 23
10 17 24
11 18 25
12 19 26

1
2
3
4
5
6

AUGUST 2023
7 14 21
8 15 22
9 16 23
10 17 24
11 18 25
12 19 26
13 20 27

28
29
30
31

SEPTEMBER 2022
5 12 19 26
6 13 20 27
7 14 21 28
1
8 15 22 29
2
9 16 23 30
3 10 17 24
4 11 18 25

1
2
3
4
5

MARCH 2023
6 13 20
7 14 21
8 15 22
9 16 23
10 17 24
11 18 25
12 19 26

1
2

OCTOBER
3 10 17
4 11 18
5 12 19
6 13 20
7 14 21
8 15 22
9 16 23

27
28
29
20
31

SEPTEMBER 2023
4 11 18 25
5 12 19 26
6 13 20 27
7 14 21 28
1
8 15 22 29
2
9 16 23 30
3 10 17 24

1
2

2022
24 31
25
26
27
28
29
30

APRIL 2023
3 10 17
4 11 18
5 12 19
6 13 20
7 14 21
8 15 22
9 16 23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30

NOVEMBER 2022
7 14 21 28
1
8 15 22 29
2
9 16 23 30
3 10 17 24
4 11 18 25
5 12 19 26
6 13 20 27

DECEMBER 2022
5 12 19 26
6 13 20 27
7 14 21 28
1
8 15 22 29
2
9 16 23 30
3 10 17 24 31
4 11 18 25

MAY 2023
8 15 22
9 16 23
10 17 24
11 18 25
12 19 26
13 20 27
14 21 28

JUNE 2023
5 12 19
6 13 20
7 14 21
8 15 22
9 16 23
10 17 24
11 18 25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

29
30
31
1
2
3
4

JANUARY 2023
2
9 16 23
3 10 17 24
4 11 18 25
5 12 19 26
6 13 20 27
7 14 21 28
1 8 15 22 29

26
27
28
29
30
1
2

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

JULY 2023
10 17 24
11 18 25
12 19 26
13 20 27
14 21 28
15 22 29
16 23 30

30
31

31

Proposed return Monday 4 September 2023

The number of term days shown is 194. Schools must keep 1 day back from the 194 above
until late in the summer term for possible election purposes leaving 193 days in term.
Schools will therefore need to identify 3 PD days from the term dates above and need to
determine a further 2 PD days from twilight sessions or designated holidays. (Pupils must be
taught for 190 days (380 sessions)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
REPORT TO CABINET
20 April 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:
REPORT OF:

Nomination of Local Authority School Governors

Caroline O’Neill, Strategic Director, Children, Adults and Families

Purpose of the Report
1.

Cabinet is asked to nominate local authority governors to schools seeking to retain
their Local Authority governor in accordance with The School Governance
(Constitution) (England) Regulations.

Background
2.

Schools - The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations require all
governing bodies to adopt a model for their size and membership. The regulations
prescribe which categories of governor must be represented and what the level of
representation is for each. The local authority’s nomination is subject to the
approval of the governing body. If approved, the nominee is appointed by the
governing body.

Proposal
3.

It is proposed that Cabinet approves the nominations to schools as shown in
appendix 1.

Recommendations
4.

It is recommended that Cabinet approves the nominations for appointment of local
authority governors as set out in appendix 1 and notes the term of office as
determined by the schools’ Instrument of Government.
For the following reason:
To ensure the School Governing Body has full membership.

CONTACT: John Finch

extension: 8626

Page 73
1 of 3

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context and Background
1.

In accordance with The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations,
local authorities can nominate any eligible person as a local authority governor.
Statutory guidance encourages local authorities to appoint high calibre governors
with skills appropriate to the school’s governance needs, who will uphold the
school’s ethos, and to nominate candidates irrespective of political affiliation or
preferences. A person is disqualified as a local authority governor if they are
eligible to be a staff governor at the same school.

Consultation
2.

The Cabinet Member for Children and Young People has been consulted.

Alternative Options
3.

The alternative option would be to make no nomination/appointment to the
vacancies, leaving governing bodies under strength and less likely to demonstrate
the correct configuration.

Implications of Recommended Option
4.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms there are no financial implications arising from this report.

b)

Human Resources Implications – None

c)

Property Implications - None

5.

Risk Management Implication - None

6.

Equality and Diversity Implications - None

7.

Crime and Disorder Implications – None

8.

Health Implications - None

9.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - None

10.

Human Rights Implications - None

11.

Ward Implications - None
Background Information

12.

The School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations.

Page 74
2 of 3

In accordance with the School Governance (Constitution) (England) Regulations
2012, the following local authority governors are nominated for a period of four years
(as stipulated in the individual Instruments of Government) with effect from the dates
stated below:
School
Lobley Hill Primary School
Whickham Sports College
Eslington/Furrowfield Federation

Nomination
Cllr Catherine Donovan
Cllr David Bradford
Cllr Angela Douglas

Page 75
3 of 3

Date from
6th July 2021
12th September 2021
25th September 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

